
Governor’s Council on Blindness and Visual Impairment (GCBVI) 

Employment Committee Meeting Minutes  
February 5, 2020 

Members Present
Nathan Pullen  

David Steinmetz 

Terell Welch 

Terri Hedgpeth 
Bea Shapiro 

Members Absent

Jordan Moon 

Staff Present 

Lindsey Powers 

Guests Present
Ben Flores  

________________________________________________________ 

Call to Order and Introductions

Nathan Pullen called the meeting to order at 3:05 pm in the RSA Conference 

Room, Phoenix, AZ.  Introductions were made a quorum was present.   

Approval of the January 28, 2020 Meeting Minutes 

Terri Hedgpeth motioned to approve the minutes from the January 28, 2020 

meeting.  Bea Shapiro seconded the motion.  The meeting minutes were 

approved by unanimous voice vote.  

E75 Event Discussion

David Steinmetz stated the Arizona Industries for the Blind (AIB) ordered 
five acrylic awards for the E75 Diversity Award event and should be done by 

the beginning of the next week.  Nathan Pullen stated the committee 

typically recognized employers with certificates, although AIB was gracious 

enough to purchase acrylic awards for the event.  Mr. Pullen stated the 
committee would recognize Jeff Bishop as the keynote speaker, Terri 

Hedgpeth, Arizona State University, AIB, and Josh Shauter.  He noted that 

he contacted APS, although he did not have confirmation that a 

representative would attend.  Nathan Pullen stated Scott McEntire would not 



be able to attend the event, although the committee could invite him to 

future events.  Nathan Pullen stated that Elizabeth and Yvonne from 
Independent Focus would have a table in the back of the room with some 

Assistive Technology (AT) that they could demonstrate for employers.  

Nathan Pullen stated the video with the Governor had been recorded, and 

the committee should have the completed video for the event.  Nathan 
Pullen stated Ben Flores, Division of Employment and Rehabilitation Services  

(DERS) Public Information Officers (PIO) created the invite that correlated to 

the Save the Date invite, and that was ready to be distributed.  Mr. Pullen 

stated that committee members were welcome to distribute the invite to 
their connections.  He noted the invite would include an Event Brite link so 

that individuals could RSVP for the event.  Nathan Pullen stated the invite 

would allow the committee to create a RSVP deadline as well as to keep 

track of the individuals that would be attending.  Nathan Pullen stated Ben 
Flores would also develop a program with DES and GCBVI branding as well 

as bios and headshots of the speakers and a slideshow that will be played on 

the screen during the event.  Nathan Pullen inquired whether Terri Hedgpeth 

would inquire whether Jeff Bishop had any material he would like presented 

on the screen.  Mr. Pullen inquired whether Terell Welch could also inquire 
whether Josh Shauter had any information to be presented on the slideshow.  

Nathan Pullen stated if the speakers did not have any specific information, 

they could include their picture, company name and their company logo.  

Terell Welch inquired whether Josh Shauter’s name and company logo would 
be enough for the slideshow.  Ben Flores stated he received a headshot of 

Josh Shauter, although the picture was cut off, so he requested another 

picture.  Terri Hedgpeth inquired regarding the timeline for submitting 

materials to Ben Flores.  Ben Flores stated he would need all bios and 
pictures by Friday in order to print the programs.  Mr. Flores stated he also 

needed a bio for Chris LaFollette.  Ben Flores inquired whether APS and 

Cyracom would be included in the program also.  David Steinmetz stated 

that APS and Cyracom did not need to be included in the program.  Ben 

Flores inquired whether any other representative from ASU would be 
attending the event.  Terri Hedgpeth stated she would invite some of her 

colleagues to attend the event.  Ben Flores stated his understanding that 

Terri Hedgpeth would be recognized as well as ASU separately.  David 

Steinmetz stated he ordered an award for Terri Hedgpeth and an award for 
ASU EOSS.  Terri Hedgpeth stated she would invite a representative from 

ASU to accept that award.   

Ben Flores inquired whether the committee intended to hold a panel 
discussion at the end of the event.  Nathan Pullen stated that would depend 

on how long the event went and noted he would contact Jeff Bishop 

regarding his presentation to determine whether there would be time for 

questions at the end of the event.  Terri Hedgpeth stated the committee had 



discussed the event timeline and had determined there would not be time 

for a panel discussion.  Nathan Pullen stated he had received feedback that 
45 minutes for Jeff Bishop to speak would be a long time.  Nathan Pullen 

stated he would contact Jeff Bishop to determine what Mr. Bishop would 

speak about and whether he was comfortable presenting for 45 minutes.  

Terri Hedgpeth stated the committee had invited Jeff Bishop to speak at the 
event and she felt the committee should allow him to speak for 45 minutes.  

Nathan Pullen stated he did not know what Mr. Bishop would speak about, 

and he wanted to get an idea of his presentation.  Terri Hedgpeth stated Jeff 

Bishop would send her an outline of his presentation and she would forward 
that to Nathan Pullen.  Nathan Pullen stated the event would end at 9:30, 

although employees could stay to ask questions of any of the speakers.  

Terri Hedgpeth agreed although she suggested the committee not call a 

discussion a panel discussion.  Nathan Pullen agreed and noted that a panel 
discussion would not be included in the agenda.  David Steinmetz stated that 

45 minutes was a long time to speak, unless Jeff Bishop had enough 

material to discuss.  Terri Hedgpeth stated the committee had decided to 

allow Jeff Bishop to speak for 45 minutes and should not make changes at 

the last minute.  Nathan Pullen stated he wanted to give Jeff Bishop an 
appropriate amount of time to present, although the committee would offer 

him the flexibility to decide how long he needed.  Bea Shapiro suggested the 

event program include a brief description of Jeff Bishop’s presentation.   

Nathan Pullen stated he would continue to reach out to APS regarding their 

attendance at the event.  He noted that Jordan Moon had reached out to 

Cyracom, although the employee’s supervisor was not interested in 

attending the event.  David Steinmetz inquired whether the committee 
would be able to obtain a quote from the Governor’s video to be included in 

a press release.  Ben Flores stated that Jillian Seamans would be developing 

a press release, and he would follow up with her regarding a quote from the 

video.  Terell Welch inquired whether the press release would be completed 

by February 11th, so the committee could distribute prior to the event.  Ben 
Flores stated the press release would be complete by the 11th, and he 

reminded that he needed all materials for the program by February 7th.   

Nathan Pullen stated that staff would be attending the event and would help 
at the Registration table.  He noted the breakfast would be catered by Café 

Cultivate and the event planner had that quote.  Nathan Pullen stated Ben 

Flores would develop the program for the event and committee members 

were welcome to share the invite with their contacts.  Nathan Pullen stated 
he had received some inquiries regarding whether VR clients could attend 

the event.  Mr. Pullen stated clients could attend, although they should be 

job ready and be able to network with employers in a polished and 

professional manner.  Bea Shapiro agreed and stated that clients should be 



in Status 20, or job ready.  Terell Welch stated he had instructed that the 

clients would need to be invited by their counselor to attend the event.  
David Steinmetz stated he received questions regarding whether the event 

was a recruiting event, and he had clarified that it was a recognition event.   

Terell Welch agreed and noted that when the committee first developed the 

E75 event, the intent was to include employment ready job seekers.  David 
Steinmetz stated he would forward the Event Brite link to AIB 

representatives to RSVP for the event.   

Agenda and Date for Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Employment Committee will be on February 14, 

2020, from 2:00 to 3:00 pm in the RSA Conference Room, Phoenix, AZ.  

Agenda items are as follows:  

• E75 Event Discussion 

➢ Event Timeline/Agenda 

➢ Event Program 

➢ Event RSVPs 

Announcements 

There were no announcements.

Public Comment

A call was made to the public with no response’s forthcoming.

Adjournment of Meeting

Bea Shapiro motioned to adjourn the meeting.  David Steinmetz seconded 

the motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 3:45 p.m. 


